
 
          

 
AGENDA 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS  
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall ~ 201 North Brushy Street 

Leander, Texas  
 

Thursday ~August 14, 2014 at 7:00 pm 
 

 
 
 Place 1 Michelle Stephenson - Vice Chair      Place 4 Sid Sokol 
 Place 2 Joel Wixson              Place 5 Richard Allen 
  Place 3 Jason Anderson                                     Place 6 Betty Saenz  
               Place 7 Jeff Seiler - Chair 

 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order  
 
 

2. Roll Call  
 
 
3. Approval of Minutes:  

a. Regular Planning & Zoning Meeting: July 24, 2014 
 
 

4. Director’s report to P & Z Commissioners on actions taken by the City Council 
 
 

5. Citizen Communications - Three (3) minutes of time is allowed, per speaker 
 

 
 

  
 



 
 

  Public Hearing 
 
 

6. Eric Zeno, Economic Development Manager to give ICSC update. 
 
 

7. Subdivision Case 11-FP-012:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Vista Ridge, Phase 2C Final Plat for 6.601 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel 
R032169; generally located approximately 1,300 feet to the west of the intersection 
of South Bagdad Road and Vista Ridge Drive on the south side of Vista Ridge 
Drive; Leander, Williamson County Texas. Applicant/Agent:  Troy Ulman, P.E. on 
behalf of 2012 Vista Ridge, LLC. 

 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
b) Applicant Presentation 
c) Open Public Hearing 
d) Close Public Hearing 
e) Discussion 
f) Consider Action 

 
 

8. Subdivision Case 13-FP-022:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Hawkes Landing, Phase 1 Final Plat for 15.85 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel 
R031634; generally located approximately 3,500 feet to the west of the intersection 
of North Bagdad Road and Old 2243 West on the north side of Old 2243 West; 
Leander, Williamson County Texas. Applicant/Agent:  Hence Distel (Hanrahan 
Pritchard Engineering) on behalf of BLG Hawkes, LLC. 

 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
b) Applicant Presentation 
c) Open Public Hearing 
d) Close Public Hearing 
e) Discussion 
f) Consider Action 

 
 

9. Subdivision Case 14-PP-001:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Palmera Ridge Preliminary Plat for 197.55 acres more or less, WCAD Parcels 
#R098020, R031606, R473799, R473798, R473797, R333713, R031617, R031607; 
containing several tracts of land located at 2680 CR 268, 17851 Ronald W. Reagan, 
generally located north of Hero Way, West of Ronald Reagan Blvd. & south of the 
future extension of E. San Gabriel Pkwy.; Legal Description AW0125 Chambers, T. 
Sur.; Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant/Agent:  Randall Jones & 
Associates on behalf of Palmera Ridge Development. 

 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
b) Applicant Presentation 



c) Open Public Hearing 
d) Close Public Hearing 
e) Discussion 
f) Consider Action 

 
 

10. Subdivision Case 14-CP-006:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Parker Tract Concept Plan, for 9.999 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R346187, 
located at 71650 RM 2243, Leander, Williamson County Texas.  Applicant: Keith 
Young on behalf of 162 Parker Ranch Holdings, LTD. 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
b) Applicant Presentation 
c) Open Public Hearing 
d) Close Public Hearing 
e) Discussion 
f) Consider Action 

 
 

11. Zoning Case 14-Z-018: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning 
of several tracts of land generally located to the northeast of the intersection of Hwy 
183A & E San Gabriel Pkwy. for 490 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R032104, 
R032237, R485832, R485833, R485834, R032103, R032211, R032196, R525991, 
and R525993. Currently, the property is zoned PUD/TOD (Planned Unit 
Development/Transit Oriented Development) and the applicant is proposing an 
amendment to the PUD, Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Stefan 
Pharis on behalf of Crescent Leander TX, LLC. 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
b) Applicant Presentation 
c) Open Public Hearing 
d) Close Public Hearing 
e) Discussion 
f) Consider Action 

 
 

12. Zoning Case 14-Z-022: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning 
of several tracts of land generally located 1,350 feet east from the northeast corner 
from the intersection of N. Bagdad Rd. and Old 2243 W. for 28.5 acres more or 
less; WCAD Parcels R393879, R393878, R393877, R393876, R393875. Currently, 
the property is zoned HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) and the applicant is proposing 
to zone the property GC-4-D (General Commercial) and MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
districts, Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 

a)  Staff Presentation 
b) Applicant Presentation 
c) Open Public Hearing 
d) Close Public Hearing 
e) Discussion 
f) Consider Action 

 
 



 
13. Meeting adjourned at  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
This meeting will be conducted pursuant to the Texas Government Code Section 551.  
The  City  of  Leander is  committed  to  compliance  with  the  Americans  with  Disabilities  Act.   
Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications will be provided upon request.  Please 
call the City Secretary at 512/ 528-2700 for information.  Hearing impaired or speech disabled 
persons equipped with telecommunications devices for the deaf may call 512/ 528-2800.  I certify 
that the above notice of the Regular Meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 
Leander, Texas, was posted on the bulletin board at City  Hall, in Leander, Texas, on the 18th  day of 
July, 2014  by 5:00 pm pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  
 
 
 
 
 
Tom Yantis, AICP – Director of Development Services 
 



 
          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS  

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall ~ 201 North Brushy Street 
Leander, Texas  

 
Thursday ~July 24, 2014 at 7:00 pm 

 
 
 
 Place 1 Michelle Stephenson - Vice Chair      Place 4 Sid Sokol 
 Place 2 Joel Wixson              Place 5 Richard Allen 
  Place 3 Jason Anderson                                     Place 6 Betty Saenz  
               Place 7 Jeff Seiler - Chair 

 
 

1. Call to Order  
      Meeting called to order at 7:04 pm. 
 
 

2. Roll Call  
All Commissioners were present except Commissioner Wixson. 
Commissioner Wixon arrived at 7:05 pm. 

 
 
3. Approval of Minutes:  

a. Regular Planning & Zoning Meeting: July 10, 2014 
Motion made by Commissioner Anderson to approve the minutes, 
seconded by Sokol. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
4. Director’s report to P & Z Commissioners on actions taken by the City Council 

Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services, reported on actions that  
were taken by the City Council at their July 17th, 2014 meeting on 
items that were recommended from the P & Z Commission 

 
5. Citizen Communications - Three (3) minutes of time is allowed, per speaker 

No citizens wished to speak. 



 

  Public Hearing 
 
 

6. Subdivision Case 12-FP-001:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the LISD 
Benbrook Ranch Final Plat for 171.436 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R501145; 
generally located to the northeast of the intersection of N. Bagdad Road and W. San 
Gabriel Pkwy; Leander, Williamson County Texas. Applicant/Agent:  Terry Reynolds 
(Atkins) on behalf of LISD. 

 
a) Staff Presentation 

Robin Griffin, Senior Planner stated that staff reviewed the request and it 
has staff approval with conditions stated in the executive summary.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

Terry Reynolds spoke to the commissioners and let them know she 
was present for questions. 

 
c) Open Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
No one wished to speak. 

 
d) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 
e) Discussion 

No discussion took place. 
 

f) Consider Action 
Vice Chairman Stephenson moved to approve with staff 
recommendation, Commissioner Allen seconded the motion. Motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

7. Subdivision Case 14-FP-017:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Hazlewood, Phase 3 Final Plat for 11.315 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R031216; 
generally located 100 feet from the southwest corner of the intersection of Ericanna Ln. 
and Pecan Valley Dr.; Leander, Williamson County Texas. Applicant/Agent:  Dustin 
Goss, P.E. on behalf of Continental Homes of Texas, LP. 

 
a) Staff Presentation 

Martin Siwek, Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and it has 
staff approval with conditions stated in the executive summary.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

Tom Moody spoke on the Hazlewood final plat. 
 

 
c) Open Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
No one wished to speak. 

 



d) Close Public Hearing 
 Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 

 
e) Discussion 

 No discussion took place. 
 

f) Consider Action 
Commissioner Allen moved to approve with staff recommendation, 
Commissioner Anderson seconded the motion. Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 
 

8. Subdivision Case 14-CP-004:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
Springwoods Concept Plan, for 104.23 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R496874, 
R032138, R031736, and R496876 generally located approximately ¾ of a mile from 
the southeast corner of the intersection of RM 2243 and CR 175, Leander, Williamson 
County Texas.  Applicant: Fred Lockwood on behalf of Cannon 140 L.P. 

Withdrawn 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
b) Applicant Presentation 
c) Open Public Hearing 
d) Close Public Hearing 
e) Discussion 
f) Consider Action 
 

 
 

9. Zoning Case #14-Z-008: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
rezoning of a parcel located at 17400 Ronald Reagan Blvd. for 4.2 acres more 
or less; Parcel #R334861. Currently the property is zoned GC-2-B (General 
Commercial).  The property is proposed to be zoned GC-3-B (General 
Commercial), Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Scott J. Foster, 
P.E. on behalf of Vince & Nanette Giaco 

 
a) Staff Presentation 

Martin Siwek, Planner stated that staff reviewed the request and it has 
staff approval.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

Scott J. Foster, P.E. spoke on the purpose for the zoning request and 
answered P & Z Commissions questions. 

 
c) Open Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
Jay Harvey spoke against. 
Mike Mize spoke against.  

 
d) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 



e) Discussion 
Discussion took place. 

 
f) Consider Action 

Commissioner Sokol moved to approve the zoning request of GC-3-B 
(General Commercial), Commissioner Allen seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

10. Zoning Case 14-Z-009: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a 
tract of land generally located to the southwest of the intersection of Crystal Falls Pkwy 
& Christine Dr. for 9.604  acres more or less of land located in the Lucius B. Johnson 
Sur 426 & the Bittick Sur. 144, TCAD Parcel  #823336 and WCAD Parcel #R484293. 
Currently, the property is zoned SFT-2-A (Single Family Townhome) and LO-2-A 
(Local Office) and the applicant is proposing to zone the property PUD (Planned Unit 
Development), Leander, Travis and Williamson Counties, Texas. Applicant: Mike 
Siefert on behalf of Lookout Partners LP. 

 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner stated that staff reviewed the request and it 
has staff approval.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

Eric Rome explained the purpose of the zoning change. 
 

c) Open Public Hearing 
Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 

 
Kylon Gustin spoke against. 
Ladonna Shirley spoke against. 
Eric Johnson spoke against. 

            
d) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 
e) Discussion 

Discussion took place. 
 

f) Consider Action 
Commissioner Wixson moved to approve the zoning request of PUD 
(Planned Unit Development) with the following conditions  

1. Street lighting is required at the intersections between the drives 
and public streets.  Street lighting is optional in the interior of the 
project. 

2. Fencing shall be limited to wrought iron or tubular metal. 
3. The masonry requirement shall be increased to 10%. 

 
Vice Chairman Stephenson seconded the motion. Motion passed 5 to 2 
with Commissioner Sokol and Commissioner Allen opposing. 
 
 

 
 



11. Zoning Case #14-Z-011: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
rezoning of a parcel located at 1001 CR 280 for 150.176 acres more or less; 
Parcel #R365151 & R473817. Currently the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-
B (Single Family Rural).  The property is proposed to be zoned SFR-2-A 
(Single Family Rural), Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: 
Haynie Consulting, Inc. on behalf of Ewing Development Co, LLC. 

 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
Martin Siwek, Planner stated that staff reviewed the request and it has 
staff approval.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

Timothy Haynie explained the purpose of the zoning request and 
answered P & Z commissioners  

 
c) Open Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
Virginia Schoggins had concerns about streets, how many houses, and 
lighting. 

 
d) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 
e) Discussion 

Discussion took place. 
 

f) Consider Action 
Commissioner Wixon moved to approve the zoning request of SFR-2- A 
(Single Family Rural), Commissioner Sokol seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

12. Zoning Case 14-Z-019: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of 
two tracts of land located at 523 Powell Drive for 6.95 acres more or less, WCAD 
Parcels #R036452 and # R036453. Currently, the property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B 
(Single Family Urban/Manufactured Home) and the applicant is proposing to zone the 
property MF-3-B (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Gary 
EIi Jones and David Singleton on behalf of Lexor Homes. 

 
a) Staff Presentation 

Robin Griffin, Senior Planner stated that staff reviewed the request and it 
has staff approval.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

David Singleton explained the purpose of the zoning request. 
 

c) Open Public Hearing 
Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
Sarah Phillips spoke against 
Heather McGary spoke against 
John Britt had questions and concerns. 



 
d) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 
e) Discussion 

Discussion took place. 
 

f) Consider Action 
The applicant requested to withdraw the zoning application and 
resubmit with a request for a PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
district.  Commissioner Sokol moved to recommend that Council 
authorize waiving the fees for the re-submittal of the application as a 
PUD.   Commissioner Wixson seconded the motion. Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 

13. Zoning Case #14-Z-020: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the 
rezoning of five tracts of land generally located at 3034 Hero Way 
approximately 3,330 feet to the east of the intersection of Hero Way and 183A 
Tool Road; for 41.666 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels #R031586, 
#R031588, #R031589, #R031584 and #R031585. Currently, the property is 
zoned Interim SFR-1-B  (Single Family Rural) and the applicant is proposing 
to zone the property HC-5-D (Heavy Commercial), Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas. Applicant: Ryan Betz on behalf of Charles H and Arleen W. 
Wilde. 

 
a)  Staff Presentation 

Martin Siwek, Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and it has 
staff approval.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

Ryan Betz explained the purpose for his zoning request. 
 

c) Open Public Hearing 
Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
Barbara Bratton spoke against 
Carrie Rich spoke against 
Karen Hickam spoke against  

 
d) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 
e) Discussion 

Discussion took place. 
 

f) Consider Action 
Commissioner Wixon moved to approve the zoning request of HC-5-D 
(Heavy Commercial), Commissioner Anderson seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 5 to 2 with Vice Chairman Stephenson and 
Commissioner Allen opposing. 

 



14. Zoning Case #14-Z-021: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of 
two tracts of land located at 2937 Hero Way for 6.42 acres more or less; WCAD 
Parcels #R508107 and #R031283. Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B  
(Single Family Rural) and the applicant is proposing to zone the property HI-5-D 
(Heavy Industrial), Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Ryan Betz on 
behalf Noel Larson, Fab-Con Products, Inc. 

 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
Martin Siwek, Planner stated that staff reviewed the request and it has 
staff approval.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation 

Ryan Betz explained the purpose for his zoning request. 
 

c) Open Public Hearing 
Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
Karen Hickam spoke against 
Barbara Bratton spoke against 

 
d) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 
e) Discussion 

Discussion took place. 
 

f) Consider Action 
Vice Chairman Stephenson moved to approve the zoning request of 
HI-5-D (Heavy Industrial), Commissioner Sokol seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 6 to 1 Commissioner Allen opposing. 

 
 

15. Ordinance Case 14-OR-002:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on an 
ordinance adopting Chapter 3, Article 3.08, Code of Ordinances, City of Leander, 
Texas, regarding the regulation of signs; and providing for a savings clause and 
repealing conflicting ordinances and resolutions.  City of Leander Planning 
Department. 

 
 

a) Staff Presentation 
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner explained the changes to the Sign Ordinance.  

 
b)  Open Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
No one wished to speak. 

 
c) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 

d) Discussion 
Discussion took place. 

 
 



 
e) Consider Action 

Commissioner Sokol moved to approve the Sign Ordinance, 
Commissioner Allen seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

16. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Case 14-CPA-002:  Hold a public hearing and 
consider action on an amendment to the comprehensive plan adopting a node plan that 
provides guidance for appropriate zoning and land use regulations within each node 
type and between the nodes and surrounding neighborhoods.  City of Leander Planning 
Department. 

 
a)  Staff Presentation 

Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained the amendment 
to the comprehensive plan. 

 
b)  Open Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing. 
No one wished to speak. 

 
c) Close Public Hearing 

Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing. 
 

d) Discussion 
Discussion took place. 

 
e) Consider Action 

Commissioner Sokol moved to approve the amendment to the 
comprehensive plan adopting a node plan, Commissioner Allen 
seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

 
17. Meeting adjourned at 11:24 pm 

 
 
 
 
 
   
        Chairman Seiler 

 

                                           

ATTEST: 
Ellen Pizalate, P & Z Secretary 
 
 
 
 



Item # 7 

 
E XE C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y 

  
AUGUST 14, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 11-FP-012:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on the Vista Ridge, Phase 2C Final Plat for 6.601 acres 
more or less; WCAD Parcel R032169; generally located 
approximately 1,300 feet to the west of the intersection of South 
Bagdad Road and Vista Ridge Drive on the south side of Vista 
Ridge Drive; Leander, Williamson County Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the final step in the subdivision process.  Pursuant 

to Section 212.005 of the Texas Local Government Code, approval 
by municipality is required since the final plat satisfies the 
applicable regulations without requesting any variances that 
require approval of the Planning & Zoning Commission.   

 
Origination: Applicant/Agent:  Troy Ulman, P.E. on behalf of 2012 Vista 

Ridge, LLC. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: This final plat includes 37 single-family lots.  This proposal meets 

all of the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance.  Staff 
recommends to conditionally approve the final plat with the 
following condition: 

 
1. All conditions listed in the Subdivision Ordinance Article II, 

Section 24 (f) (3) regarding the acceptance of the final 
improvements or the posting of fiscal assurance for the final 
improvements have been met.   

 
Motion: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval of the 

final plat for the subject property. 
  
Attachments: 1. Final Plat 
  
Prepared By:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP  
 Senior Planner    08/06/2014 









Item # 8 

 
E XE C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y 

  
AUGUST 14, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 13-FP-022:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on the Hawkes Landing, Phase 1 Final Plat for 15.85 acres 
more or less; WCAD Parcel R031634; generally located 
approximately 3,500 feet to the west of the intersection of North 
Bagdad Road and Old 2243 West on the north side of Old 2243 
West; Leander, Williamson County Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the final step in the subdivision process.  Pursuant 

to Section 212.005 of the Texas Local Government Code, approval 
by municipality is required since the final plat satisfies the 
applicable regulations without requesting any variances that 
require approval of the Planning & Zoning Commission.   

 
Origination: Applicant/Agent:  Hence Distel (Hanrahan Pritchard Engineering) 

on behalf of BLG Hawkes, LLC. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: This final plat includes 51 single-family lots, 1 open space lot, and 

1 drainage lot.  This proposal meets all of the requirements of the 
Subdivision Ordinance.  Staff recommends to conditionally 
approve the final plat with the following condition: 

 
1. All conditions listed in the Subdivision Ordinance Article II, 

Section 24 (f) (3) regarding the acceptance of the final 
improvements or the posting of fiscal assurance for the final 
improvements have been met.   

 
Motion: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval of the 

final plat for the subject property. 
  
Attachments: 1. Final Plat 
  
Prepared By:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP  
 Senior Planner    08/06/2014 









Item # 9 

 
E XE C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y 

  
AUGUST 14, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 14-PP-001:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on the Palmera Ridge Preliminary Plat for 197.55 acres 
more or less, WCAD Parcels #R098020, R031606, R473799, 
R473798, R473797, R333713, R031617, R031607; containing 
several tracts of land located at 2680 CR 268, 17851 Ronald W. 
Reagan, generally located north of Hero Way, West of Ronald 
Reagan Blvd. & south of the future extension of E. San Gabriel 
Pkwy.; Legal Description AW0125 Chambers, T. Sur.; Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the second step in the subdivision process.  

Pursuant to Section 212.005 of the Texas Local Government Code, 
approval by municipality is required since the preliminary plat 
satisfies the applicable regulations without requesting any 
variances that require approval by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission.   

 
Origination: Applicant/Agent:  Randall Jones & Associates on behalf of 

Palmera Ridge Development. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat.  This 

preliminary plat includes approximately 539 single-family lots, 1 
amenity site lot, 5 parkland lots, 18 landscape and trail lots, 5 pond 
and drainage easement lots, 1 lift station lot, 1 director/parkland 
lot, and 3 mixed use lots.  This proposal meets all of the 
requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance. 

 
Motion: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval of the 

preliminary plat for the subject property. 
  
Attachments: 1. Preliminary Plat 
  
Prepared By:   Martin Siwek  
 Planner, GISP    08/06/2014 

























Item # 10 

 
E XE C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y 

 
AUGUST 14, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 14-CP-006:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on the Parker Tract Concept Plan, for 9.999 acres more or 
less; WCAD Parcels R346187, located at 71650 RM 2243, 
Leander, Williamson County Texas.   

 
Background: This request is the first step in the subdivision process.  Pursuant to 

Section 212.005 of the Texas Local Government Code, approval 
by municipality is required since the concept plan satisfies the 
applicable regulations without requesting any variances that 
require approval by the Planning & Zoning Commission.   

 
Origination: Applicant: Keith Young on behalf of 162 Parker Ranch Holdings, 

LTD. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the concept plan.  This concept plan 

includes approximately 8 single-family lots, and 0.737 acres of 
open space, landscape, drainage utility, and access lot, and 1 
drainage lot.  This proposal meets all of the requirements of the 
Subdivision Ordinance. 

 
Motion: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval of the 

concept plan for the subject property. 
  
Attachments: 1.  Concept Plan 
  
Prepared By:   Martin Siwek, GISP  
 Planner 08/06/2014 





Item # 11 
 

 
E XE C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y 

 
AUGUST 14, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-018: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of several tracts of land generally located to the 
northeast of the intersection of Hwy 183A & E San Gabriel Pkwy. 
for 490 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R032104, R032237, 
R485832, R485833, R485834, R032103, R032211, R032196, 
R525991, and R525993. Currently, the property is zoned 
PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented 
Development) and the applicant is proposing an amendment to the 
PUD, Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the first step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Stefan Pharis on behalf of Crescent Leander TX, LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  
 
Motion: APPROVAL:  The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends 

approval of rezoning the subject property to __________. 
  (zoning district) 
 

 DENIAL:  The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends 
 denial of the applicant’s request to rezone the subject property. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Aerial Map 
 4.   Proposed Bryson PUD  
 5.  Letter of Intent 
  
Prepared By: Robin M. Griffin, AICP  
 Senior Planner 08/07/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-018 

BRYSON PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Crescent Leander TX, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the east of 183 A Toll and north of 

East San Gabriel Parkway and includes approximately 490 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH OCL Whitestone Elementary School 

EAST OCL Developed Large Lot Single-Family Homes in the ETJ 

SOUTH PUD/TOD Undeveloped Land Zoned located in the TOD 

WEST PUD/TOD Undeveloped Land Zoned located in the TOD 

        

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

PUD/TOD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT: 

The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  The intent of this zoning district 
is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent single-family 
residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region. 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a mixed residential community that will include a variety of housing types as 
well as multi-family and local commercial development.   The proposal includes detached 
residential lot widths ranging from as narrow as forty-five (45’) feet to over seventy (70’) feet 
wide and attached townhomes and apartments.  In addition, no more than twenty (20%) percent 
of the Mixed Use area can be developed for local commercial uses.  The applicant has 
incorporated the mixture of residential districts in a well integrated neighborhood plan providing 
a variety of lot sizes within the same neighborhood.    
 
The PUD proposal includes the following base zoning districts:  SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban), SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact), SFL-2-B 
(Single-Family Limited), SFT-2-B (Single-Family Townhome), MF-2-B (Multi-Family), and 
LC-2-A (Local Commercial).    
 
The table below identifies the proposed development standards for the residential zoning 
districts,  setbacks, and lot sizes for this project.  The primary difference between the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the proposed PUD is the lot size and the setbacks associated with the 
SFL-2-B district.  The ordinance currently requires the lot width to be 41 feet and the minimum 
lot size to be 4100 square feet.  The applicant is proposing a reduced lot size and rear setback for 



Attachment # 1                 

 

this district if a an alley loaded product is proposed.  The proposal includes increased dwelling 
sizes and lot depths for the different districts.  The overall project is limited to 1261 single family 
units and 500 multi-family units. In addition, the requirement includes a minimum of 375 SFS 
lots and limits the SFC to 575 and SFL to 200 and SFTuse component requires each zoning 
district is required to have a minimum of 100 units to ensure a variety of housing types.  The 
density of the MF-2-B district is limited to 12 units per acre.   
 

RES District Minimum 
Standards 

SFL           
(Rear 
Load) 

SFL SFC SFU SFS 

In
te

ri
or

 L
ot

 

Lot Width 35 45 50 60 70 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 3500 5625 6250 7500 8750 

C
or

ne
r 

L
ot

 Lot Width 45 55 60 70 80 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 4500 6875 7500 8750 10000 

 

Building 
Square 
Footage 

1050 1050 1400 1800 2100 

 

Side Yard 
Setback 

5 5 5 5 5 

 

Rear Yard 
Setback 

5 15 15 15 15 

 

Street Side 
Building 
Setback 

15 20 20 20 20 

 

Street Side 
Garage 
Setback 

- 25 25 25 25 

 

Street Side 
Porch 

Setback 
10 15 15 15 15 

 
All residential properties within the RES and MU district shall comply with the Type A 
Architectural Component unless they substantially conform to the Craftsman, Farmhouse or 
similar style included within the PUD.   This provision does not apply to LC uses or traditional 
apartments.   
 
ADDITIONAL VARIATIONS  
The applicant is requesting the following variations from the City Ordinances: 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 Allowing temporary model home parking areas and permitting crushed granite as the 
parking lot material with a time frame of 10 years.  Currently, we require a special use 
permit to be submitted and reviewed by Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council.  Including this provision, would waive the requirement for the special use 
permit. 

 Allowing tertiary entrance signs at entryways into sections within the PUD and are 
permitted only in subdivisions that exceed 50 acres. They may be used to identify various 
sections that are 15 acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the PUD.  
Currently, the ordinance requires that the sections are a minimum of 25 acres in size.  In 
addition, they are requesting to increase the sign face from 10 square feet to 12 square 
feet.   

 Allowing decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures.  A license agreement 
will also be required to allow the decorative poles. 

 Allowing banner signs advertising the community and HOA events on the light poles.  
This signs will be limited 3’ wide by 6’ tall or 18 square feet. 

 Allowing a 8’ wide decomposed granite trail with a 6” concrete ribbon in lieu of a 
sidewalk along collector streets.  A license agreement will be required. 

 Allowing the use of cementious fiber or board and batten materials to qualify as masonry 
when homes are constructed a specific architectural style. 

 Allowing garages to extend up to 5’ past the dwelling on lots that are greater than 60’ 
wide. 

 Allowing licensed food trailers on HOA property and parks.   
 Limiting the fencing adjacent to greenbelts to tubular metal or split rail. 
 Requiring additional landscaping for residential development. 

 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD.  The proposed PUD promotes more flexibility 
with the location of the single-family districts and incorporates a mixture of multi-family, single-
family townhome and local commercial.  This application effectively utilizes composite zoning 
to incorporate a variety of land uses while maintaining high form standards.  The requested PUD 
meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

BRYSON

5D

4C

4C
4C

4C

CR 270

US
 18

3

US
 18

3 S
B

US
 18

3 N
B

CR
 26

6

CR
 27

6

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

CR 26
7

BAKER LN

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

RIVER RUN

PVR 949

PVR 918

ORCHARD DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

SIGNAL HILL DR

HI
GH

 G
AB

RI
EL

 D
R

GREEN VALLEY DR

MI
KE

S W
AY

KING LN

AMANDAS WAY

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

SK
YV

IE
W 

TE
R

JENNIFER LN

LEN BAR LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

HERITAGE GROVE RD

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

NORWOOD DR

BA
R R

YD
ER

 TR
L

ARROYO CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-018
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Bryson PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



CR 270
US

 18
3 S

B
US

 18
3 N

B

US
 18

3

CR
 26

6

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

CR 26
7

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

BAKER LN

PVR 918

ORCHARD DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

SIGNAL HILL DR

GREEN VALLEY DR

KING LN
CR 276

SK
YV

IE
W 

TE
R

JENNIFER LN

LEN BAR LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

NORWOOD DR

MIKES WAY

BA
R R

YD
ER

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-018 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Bryson PUD



EXHIBIT C 

1 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

 
Bryson  

Planned Unit Development  
 
I. General Notes 
 

A. The PUD consists of approximately 490.00 acres (the “Property”) located in Williamson 
County, Leander, Texas, as particularly described in Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD 
ordinance. 
 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 
governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 

II. Zoning Districts 
 
A. The PUD consists of two use districts depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout 

& Land Use Plan attached hereto, including:  
1. MU (Mixed Use) containing approximately 82.61 acres; and 
2. RES (Residential) containing approximately 407.60 acres;  

 
III. Use Components  

 
A. Allowed uses.  The following table contains the use components allowed within the MU 

& RES zoning use district boundaries shown on Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD 
ordinance.  The total number of single family units shall not exceed 1261 units. 
 

Table 1 

*35’ width for rear load. 
 
 

B. RES – Residential District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 

Land Use 
RES 

District
MU 

District
Lot 

Width
Unit Mix 

  
 
 

Single Family Suburban (SFS) X 70 375 Minimum 
Single Family Urban (SFU) X X 60 375-525  

Single Family Compact (SFC) X X 50 575 Maximum 
Single Family Limited (SFL) X X 45* 200 Units Maximum 

Single Family Townhome (SFT)  X 20 213 Units Maximum 
Multi-Family (MF) X  500 Units Maximum 

Local Commercial (LC)  X  
25% of 

MU Area 
Maximum 



 

2 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

1. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFL, SFC, SFU, and SFS, use components, as more 
particularly set forth in Table 2 in this PUD ordinance, and according to the approved 
concept plan.   

2. Temporary modular welcome centers are permitted in a section of the RES District 
for no more than five (5) years after installation and then must be moved to another 
section for no more than five (5) years after installation.    

3. Licensed Food Trailers are permitted on HOA owned property or parks and are 
subject to permitting requirements promulgated by the City of Leander. 
 

C. MU - Mixed Use District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 
1. Mixed Use is defined as combining different permitted uses in the same building 

and/or having multiple permitted uses within the MU District.  The different uses are 
not required to be within the same building or the same Legal Lot or Legal Tract. 

2. Development in the MU District shall be in accordance with the approved concept 
plan with no more than 500 of the units being MF-Multi Family. 

3. Temporary modular welcome centers are permitted in a section of the MU District for 
no more than five (5) years after installation and then must be moved to another 
section for no more than five (5) years after installation.    

4. Licensed Food Trailers are permitted on HOA owned property or parks and are 
subject to permitting requirements promulgated by the City of Leander. 

5. The following uses allowed within the LC use component of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance shall be prohibited in the MU District: 
(a) Funeral Home 
(b) Cemetery 

 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

 
A. RES District.   

1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached 
as Table 2 to this PUD ordinance.  To the extent that these requirements are 
inconsistent with the requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site 
Standards), Article VII (Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural 
Standards) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance, the Development Standards set 
forth in this PUD ordinance and Table 2 attached hereto will apply.  

2. RES District Architectural Standards shall comply with the Type A Architectural 
Component or as modified below: 
(a)  Cementious-fiber, i.e. hardiplank or Board and Batten materials as defined 

below, shall be allowed to count toward the masonry requirement for homes with 
an architectural style that substantially conforms to the images shown in Exhibit 
3, including, but not limited to Craftsman, Farmhouse, and other similar 
architectural styles. 

(b) For purposes of this PUD, Hardiplank is defined as: Horizontal cementious-fiber 
planking with a width not to exceed 9”, and Board and Batten is defined as board 
and batten cementious-fiber planking with vertical member spacing not to exceed 
24”. 



 

3 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

(c) The list of design feature examples is as follows, 5 features per home are 
required:   
(i) Recessed entry 
(ii) Porch 
(iii) Ornamental Windows 
(iv) Horizontal offset 
(v) Standing seam metal roof 
(vi) At least 15% of front façade comprised of window and door openings 
(vii) Vertical elevations offset 
(viii) Varied roof heights 
(ix) Canopy/shed roof or other architectural elements 
(x) Balcony 
(xi) Integrated Planter or Wing Walls  
(xii) Decorative garage doors 

3. Landscaping Requirements for each single family lot are as follows: 
(a) Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood 
(b) Shrubs: 20 x 5 Gal 
(c) Shrubs: 20 x 1 Gal  
(d) Turf: Bermuda or Zoysia, may not exceed 2/3 of the total landscape area.                    
(e) AC Units, Dry Utility Pedestals must be screened 24" min. height at planting - 36" 

w/in 1-2 years.  Working clearance and access must be maintained. 
(f) All plants are to be 100% native and adapted, as set forth in the Grow Green 

Guide to Native & Adaptive Landscape Plants published by the City of Austin 
Watershed Protection Department and the Texas AgriLife Extension Service 

4. Peaked roof with a minimum 4:12 pitch, except for accents, dormers, porches, and 
other architectural features are permitted. 

5. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

6. Garages in SFL, SFC, SFU, SFS lot types may protrude up to 5’ past the front 
building façade line, but shall be subject to a 25’ front setback in all instances. 

7. Garages in line with or behind the front building façade may be located on the 20’ 
front setback for all lot types. 

8. Side Entry Garages in line with or behind the side building facade may be located on 
the 20’ foot setback for all lot types. 

9. For lots less than 70’, only one (1) enclosed garage parking space shall be required, 
provided that the total number of required parking spaces is met.  No more than 10% 
of the total lots within the PUD may utilize this standard. 

10. Temporary model home parking areas are a permitted use in the RES District in 
areas adjacent to or nearby model home sales areas for a maximum of ten (10) 
years after the issuance of a site development permit for such parking area.  In 
addition to authorized materials in the Composite Zoning Ordinance, such temporary 
parking areas may be constructed with crushed granite.   

 
 

 
 



 

4 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

Table 2 
 

RES District Minimum 
Standards 

SFL       
(Rear 
Load) 

SFL SFC SFU SFS 
In

te
rio

r 
Lo

t Lot Width 35 45 50 60 70 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 3500 5625 6250 7500 8750 

C
or

ne
r 

Lo
t Lot Width 45 55 60 70 80 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 4500 6875 7500 8750 10000

Building 
Square 
Footage 

1050 1050 1400 1800 2100 

Side Yard 
Setback 

5 5 5 5 5 

Rear Yard 
Setback 

5 15 15 15 15 

 

Front 
Garage 
Setback 

N/A 25 25 25 25 

 
Front 

Setback 
10 20 20 20 20 

Street Side 
Building 
Setback 

10 15 15 15 15 

Street Side 
Garage 
Setback 

N/A 20 20 20 20 

 
 

B. MU District.   
1. Development in the MU District of the PUD will comply with one of the following Use, 

Site and Architectural Component standards: 
(a) MF-2-A; 
(b) SFT-2-A; 
(c) SFL-2-A; 
(d) SFU-2-A;  
(e) SFC-2-A or 
(f) LC-2-A. 



 

5 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

2. MU District Residential Architectural Standards for SFL, SFT, or MF  product (that is 
limited to detached structures, attached structures with 6 or fewer units, apartment 
style development must comply with the Type A Architectural requirements without 
the modifications listed)  will comply with Article VII – Type A or as modified below: 
(c) Cementious-fiber, i.e. hardiplank or Board and Batten materials as defined 

below, shall be allowed to count toward the masonry requirement for homes with 
an architectural style that substantially conforms to the images shown in Exhibit 
3, including, but not limited to Craftsman, Farmhouse, and other similar 
architectural styles. For purposes of this PUD, Hardiplank is defined as: 
Horizontal cementious-fiber planking with a width not to exceed 9”, and Board 
and Batten is defined as: Board and batten cementious-fiber planking with 
vertical member spacing not to exceed 24” .  

(d) The list of design feature examples is as follows, 5 features per home are 
required:  
(i) Recessed entry 
(ii) Porch 
(iii) Ornamental Windows 
(iv) Horizontal offset 
(v) Standing seam metal roof 
(vi) At least 15% of front façade comprised of window and door openings 
(vii) Vertical elevations offset 
(viii) Varied roof heights 
(ix) Canopy/shed roof or other architectural elements 
(x) Balcony 
(xi) Integrated Planter or Wing Walls  
(xii) Decorative garage doors 

3. Landscaping Requirements for each single family lot are as follows: 
(a) Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood 
(b) Shrubs: 20 x 5 Gal 
(c) Shrubs: 20 x 1 Gal  
(d) Turf: Bermuda or Zoysia, may not exceed 2/3 of the total landscape area.                    
(e) AC Units, Dry Utility Pedestals must be screened 24" min. height at planting - 36" 

w/in 1-2 years.  Working clearance and access must be maintained. 
(f) All plants are to be 100% native and adapted, as set forth in the Grow Green 

Guide to Native & Adaptive Landscape Plants published by the City of Austin 
Watershed Protection Department and the Texas AgriLife Extension Service. 

4. Peaked roof with a minimum 4:12 pitch, except for accents, dormers, porches, and 
other architectural features 

5. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

6. Garages in SFL, SFC, SFU lot types may protrude 5’ past the front building façade 
line, but shall be subject to a 25’ front setback in all instances. 

7. Garages in line with or behind the front building façade shall be subject to a 20’ front 
setback for all lot types. 

8. Side Entry Garages in line with or behind the side building facade may be located on 
the 20’ foot setback for all lot types. 



 

6 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

 
9. For lots less than 70’, only one (1) enclosed garage parking space shall be required.  

The total required number of parking spaces shall remain the same.  No more than 
10% of the total lots within the PUD may utilize this standard. 

10. Temporary model home parking areas are a permitted use in the MU District in 
areas adjacent to or nearby model home sales areas for a maximum of ten (10) 
years after the issuance of a site development permit for such parking area.  In 
addition to authorized materials, such temporary parking areas may be constructed 
with crushed granite. 

V. Roadway Design 
 

A. The Bryson community will incorporate the following standards for Public Streets and 
Private Drives, and as outlined in Table 3 and Exhibit 2 - Street Sections 
 

B. Traffic calming devices such as roundabouts, traffic circles, neck downs, chicanes, etc. 
are permitted within Bryson, and shall be subject to approval by the City of Leander 
Engineer. 

 
C. Street Trees located in a planting median between the back of curb and sidewalk in the 

Public ROW shall be allowed, pursuant to a license agreement with the City of Leander. 
 

D. Roadway callouts on PUD Land Use Plan are minimum standards.  Alternate lane 
configurations may be approved by the City Engineer. 

 
Table 3 

 

Public Streets and 
Private Drives 

EC-120 RC-71 RC-61 RC-60 LS-50 AL-25 PD-28 PD-25 

ROW Varies 71 61 60 50 25 N/A N/A 

FOC-FOC 2 @ 18 46 36 34 28 20 28 25 

Min. Centerline Radius 300 300 300 300 180 N/A N/A N/A 

On Street Parking No Yes Yes No Yes No 
Yes 
(one 
side) 

No 

Curb Return Radius 15 15 15 15 15 10 10 10 

Curb Return Radius 
for Fire Lanes 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 25 25 

Bike Lane Yes Yes No Yes No No No No 

Sidewalks Required 
Yes 

(North 
side only) 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No 

 
  



 

7 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

 
VI. Signage 

 
A. The following modifications to the tertiary entrance signs shall be regulated by this PUD.  

Tertiary entrance signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD, 
and they may be used to identify various sections that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in 
size in order to enhance direction within the PUD.  Tertiary entrance signs shall be 
comprised entirely of stone, masonry or, metal with engraved lettering or with pin-
mounted aluminum or steel letters.  The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be 
limited to a total size of twelve (12) square feet.  All signs in a public ROW will require a 
License Agreement. For sections that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size with 
multiple entries, a tertiary sign shall be allowed at each entry. 
 

B. Decorative Street and Pole Mounted Banner signs are permissible in all PUD zoning 
districts along collector streets.  The maximum banner size shall be 3’ width x 6’ height 
or 18 SF.  Banner signs are permitted to advertise the Bryson Community and HOA 
events only.  Banner signs shall require a License Agreement from the City of Leander, 
and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

 
VII. Lighting  

 
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article VI (Site Component) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date 
of this PUD Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along, and within the 
ROW of collector streets may be decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures 
and shall require a License Agreement and will be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association (HOA). 

 
VIII. Sidewalks and Trails 

 
A. The main entry road off of US-183A up to the amenity center is only required to have a 

sidewalk on the north side of the roadway.  This sidewalk shall be a minimum 8’ width. 
 

B. When located adjacent and/or parallel to a collector street and within the right-of-way an 
8’ wide decomposed granite trail with a 6” width concrete ribbon curb shall be allowed in 
lieu of a concrete sidewalk and will require a license agreement. At least one side of the 
roadway is required to have a continuous concrete sidewalk that meets applicable 
accessibility requirements 
 

 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
 



 

8 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

IX. Fencing 
 
A. Fencing located adjacent to greenbelts will be limited to wrought iron, tubular metal or 

split rail or City of Leander Planning Director approved equivalent 
 
X. Building Height 

 
A. Building heights shall be measured from the highest point of the finished floor elevation.  

In the case of split level foundations, the building height shall be measured from the 
highest finished floor elevation of such home. This measurement only applies to the 
Building Height Limitation of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.    

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  



 

9 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

Exhibit 1 
Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 

  



 

10 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

Exhibit  2 
Street Sections 

 
 

 
 

 
  



 

11 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

12 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

13 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

Exhibit  3 
Architectural Styles 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

14 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

15 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 5





Item # 12 
 

 
E XE C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y 

 
AUGUST 14, 2014 

  
 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-022: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of several tracts of land generally located 1,350 
feet east from the northeast corner from the intersection of N. 
Bagdad Rd. and Old 2243 W. for 28.5 acres more or less; WCAD 
Parcels R393879, R393878, R393877, R393876, R393875. 
Currently, the property is zoned HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) and 
the applicant is proposing to zone the property GC-4-D (General 
Commercial) and MF-2-B (Multi-Family) districts, Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas. 

 
 
Background: This request is the first step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Bruce Nakfoor on behalf of MLMH LTD. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  
 
Motion: APPROVAL:  The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends 

approval of rezoning the subject property to __________. 
  (zoning district) 
 

 DENIAL:  The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends 
 denial of the applicant’s request to rezone the subject property. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Aerial Map  
 4.  Letter of Intent 
  
Prepared By: Martin Siwek, GISP  
 Planner 08/07/2014 
 



Attachment #1                

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-022 

Old 2243 Mixed Use 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: MLMH LTD 
 
Current Zoning: HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) 
    
Proposed Zoning: GC-4-D (General Commercial); MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is approximately 1,350 feet east from the northeast corner 

from the intersection of N. Bagdad Rd. and Old 2243 W. for 28.5 acres 
more or less. 

 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B 
Developed Single Family Homes: Estates of North Creek 
Ranch Subdivision 

EAST SFU-2-B   Proposed Mini-Storage Facility 

SOUTH 
GC-3-C 

 SFU-2-B 
 HC-4-D 

Leander Veterinary Clinic 
Developed Single Family Home 
Vacant Property 

WEST HC-4-D Big and Safe Self Storage 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment #1                

 

      

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

 

USE COMPONENT: 
 

MF – MULTI-FAMILY:   
Features:  Apartments (25 un./ac. if Type A; 18 un./ac. if Type B) 
Intent:  Development of multi-family dwelling structures. Such components are generally 

intended to serve as a buffer between single-family neighborhoods and more intensive uses 
such as commercial uses or arterial roadways.  Such components are also intended to create 
more variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the community but are intended to be 
utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to strictly multi-family residential 
development.  The goal is to avoid more than twenty-five (25) acres of contiguous land having 
a Multi-Family component.  Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification 
street. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 
 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
 
 



Attachment #1                

 

TYPE 4 (non-residential only):   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 60% of primary building; drive-thru service; outdoor 

fueling and washing of vehicles; overhead service doors; maximum outdoor display; 
substantial outdoor storage; outdoor entertainment venues and animal boarding. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 4 site component is intended to be utilized in combination with GC, LI or HI 

components where appropriate for moderately intense outdoor site requirements and a need to 
utilize the outdoor site area for significant outdoor display, storage and accessory buildings and 
similar permitted uses. 

(2) This site component is intended only for industrial or heavy commercial uses and may be utilized 
only with GC, LI or HI use components.   

(3) This site component is not intended for retail or office development not requiring the available 
limits of outdoor storage and accessory buildings or adjacent to residential neighborhoods where 
not adequately buffered from residential uses. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 
 

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st

Intent:   
 floor, 50% (all stories); 4 or more architectural features. 

(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 
development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   

(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions.   

(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 
non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 

 
TYPE D (non-residential only):   
Features:  35% masonry (60% street facing); metal siding for remainder not facing a street; 2 or 

more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) This architectural component is intended only for industrial warehouse, heavy commercial service 

and other similar applications and shall be utilized only with GC, HC or HI use components.  
(2) This component is not intended to be utilized with the majority of GC districts.   
(3) This component is not intended for retail or office development or adjacent to residential 

neighborhoods where not adequately buffered from residential uses.   
(4) This site component is discouraged along major thoroughfares and is intended to be utilized 

within industrial park development.   
 

  



Attachment #1                

 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) district to 
GC-4-D (General Commercial) district and MF-2-B (Multi-Family) district.  The intent of the 
applicant’s request is to provide a site that would support development for potential commercial 
pad sites and an area for an apartment complex development to the rear of the property. The GC-
4-D request is proposed to extend 300 ft back from the right-of-way line of Old 2243 W., and the 
remaining north tract of the property is proposed area to locate the MF-2-B zoning district. 
 
The intent statements for the General Commercial use component speaks to this component 
being located in high traffic areas and that access should be provided by an arterial street. Old 
2243 W. is designated as an arterial class street per the City’s Transportation Plan. 
 
The intent statement of the Type 4 site component speaks to being utilized only for industrial and 
heavy commercial uses, and may be utilized with GC, HC, or HI use components.  It also notes 
that it is to be utilized where appropriate for uses with moderately intense outdoor site 
requirements, and has the need for significant outdoor storage and display. The Type 4 
component is not intended to be utilized for office and retail uses that are inadequately buffered 
from residential uses. 
 
The Type 4 site component requires the following: 
 Unlimited outdoor display 
 Outdoor storage and container storage limited to sixty percent (60%) of the gross floor 

area of the primary building. 
 Accessory buildings/structures with square footage no greater than sixty percent (60%) of 

the gross floor area of the primary building 
 The combination of accessory buildings/structures and outdoor storage shall not exceed 

eighty percent (80%) of the gross floor area of the primary building. 
 Outdoor commercial fueling and washing of vehicles is permitted per Type 3 
 Outdoor animal boarding 
 Outdoor entertainment venues involving substantial outdoor facilities, noise generation, 

or amplified sound systems. 
 Overhead commercial service doors 

 
The intent statement of the Type D architectural component speaks to this component only being 
utilized for heavy commercial service or industrial warehousing.  It notes that it is not intended 
to be utilized with the majority of GC districts.  It is not intended for retail or office development 



Attachment #1                

 

adjacent to residential neighborhoods where not adequately buffered. This architectural 
component is discouraged along major thoroughfares and is intended to be utilized within an 
industrial park development. 
 
The Type D architectural component calls for the following: 
 35% of the exterior surface area of walls (all stories) are masonry 
 60% of the exterior surface area of all street facing walls are to be masonry (all stories) 
 Permits cementious fiber board or painted metal panel for remaining materials 
 Requires at least 2 design features visible from a public street or residential district. 
 Permits facilities that have no exterior walls as a primary use which exposes mechanical, 

electrical of other facilities. 
 
The intent statements for the Multi-Family use component speaks to being utilized as a buffer 
between single-family neighborhoods and more intensive  uses such as commercial uses or 
arterial roadways. It is intended to be utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to 
strictly multi-family development, with the goal seeking to avoid 25 contiguous acres or more.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 
 
The intent statement for the Type 2 site components identifies that it is to be utilized where non-
residential developments are adjacent to a residential district, or other more restrictive districts. It 
is to be utilized with developments not requiring the accessory structure or dwelling privileges of 
the Type 3 site component, and is generally not used with the HC and HI use components. 
 
The Type 2 site component requires the following: 
 Accessory buildings/structures with square footage not greater than ten percent (10%) of 

the gross floor area of the primary building. 
 Commercial outdoor animal boarding is permitted. 
 Outdoor entertainment venues with substantial outdoor facilities, noise generation, and 

amplified sound systems are prohibited. 
 Drive-through service lanes and drive-in service are permitted. 
 Outdoor display is prohibited 
 Outdoor storage and container storage are prohibited. 
 Outdoor fuel sales are prohibited. 
 At least 35% of the units of multi-family development are required to have at least one 

enclosed garage parking space, and parking areas shall be no wider than two parking 
modules wide. 

 
The intent statement for the Type B architectural component notes that it is intended to be 
utilized for the majority of residential development. It is to assist with harmonious land use 
transitions, and is to help raise the standards for non-residential property adjacent to residential 
uses or property that is more restrictive.  
 
The Type B architectural component calls for the following: 
 85% of the first surface area walls are required to be comprised of masonry. 
 50% of the exterior surface area walls (all stories) are to be comprised of masonry. 



Attachment #1                

 

 All building fronts shall have at least four different design features to break the wall 
plane. 

 Permits cementious fiber planking for the remaining exterior surface materials. 
 This architectural component would permit a maximum density of 18 units per acre for 

Multi-Family development. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to GC-4-D and MF-2-B, and staff is 
recommending approval of GC-3-C and MF-2-B.   The request for the GC-4-D district is seeking 
to maintain the site component and architectural requirements of the present zoning of the 
property. The Type 4 site component intent statement notes that it is to be utilized for industrial 
or heavy commercial uses, and that it should not be utilized with office or retail development 
without the need for the available limits of outdoor storage and accessory buildings.   
 
The Type 3 site component would be appropriate for commercial development at this location as 
it scales back the amount of outdoor display to 30% of the gross floor area for primary structures, 
and 20% of the gross floor area of the primary structure for outdoor storage and container 
storage. Additionally, the Type 3 site component would limit outdoor entertainment venues that 
seek substantial outdoor facilities, unshielded stadium lighting, and noise generation. This would 
protect the future residents immediately north of the property adjacent to Old 2243 W. and the 
residents within the Estates of North Creek Ranch.  Additionally, the intent statements for the 
Type D architectural component note that it is only to be used with industrial park developments, 
and it’s not to be located along major thoroughfares.  Staff is recommending the Type C 
architectural component as it is appropriate for most uses permitted within the GC use 
component. 
 
The MF-2-B request meets the intent statements of the use component.  It meets the goal of 
avoiding contiguous tracts of 25 acres or less, and access to it would be provided on a collector 
or higher class thoroughfare (Old 2243 W.). 



BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

NORTHSIDE MEADOW

3A5D

5D

5D

5C

OLD 2243 WEST

RANCHERO RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

ENCANTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E 

DR

ESCONDIDO DR

RUBLES CT

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

SA
BI

NA
S 

DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-022
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Old 2243 Mixed Use

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

OLDTOWNVILLAGE

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 1

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

NORTHSIDE MEADOW

OLD 2243 WEST

RANCHERO RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

ES
TA

NC
IA 

WA
Y

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E D

R

ESCONDIDO DR

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R
CO

UL
EE

 D
R

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

BU
RG

ES
S D

R

OAKLAND CV

LOGUE CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-022 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Old 2243 Mixed Use




	8-14-14 P&Z Agenda
	7-24-14 P&Z Minutes -
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler closed the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler opened the public hearing.
	Chairman Seiler
	ATTEST:

	11-FP-012 Exec Summary Vista Ridge, Ph 2C Final Plat
	11-FP-012 Att 1 Vista Ridge, Phase 2C Final Plat
	13-FP-022 Exec Summary Hawkes Landing, Phase 1 Final Plat
	13-FP-022 Att 1 Hawkes Landing Ph 1 Final Plat
	14-PP-001 Exec Summary Palmera Ridge Preliminary Plat
	14-PP-001 Att 1 Palmera Ridge Preliminary Plat
	2106_01
	2106_02
	2106_03
	2106_04_park plan
	2106_05_aerial
	2106_06_existing drainage
	2106_07_proposed drainage
	2106_08_proposed drainage
	2106_09_proposed drainage
	2106_10_water & ww schematic
	2106_11_water & ww schematic

	14-CP-006 Exec Parker Tract Concept Plan
	14-CP-006 Parker Tract Concept Plan
	14-Z-018 Exec Summary Bryson PUD
	14-Z-018 Att 1 Planning Analysis Bryson PUD
	14-Z-018 Att 2 Zoning Map Bryson
	14-Z-018 Att 3 Aerial Map Bryson
	14-Z-018 Att 4 Proposed Bryson PUD
	14-Z-018 Att 5 Letter of Intent Bryson
	14-Z-022 Exec Summary Old 2243 Mixed Use
	14-Z-022 Att 1 Planning Analysis Old 2243 Mixed Use
	14-Z-022 Att 2 Current Zoning Map Old 2243 Mixed Use
	14-Z-022 Att 3 Aerial Map Old 2243 Mixed Use
	14-Z-022 Att 4 Letter of Intent



